INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT - _

To the Members of Zenotech Laboratories Limited

Report on the Audit of the Sta ndalone Financial Stétements
Cpinion |

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Zenotech Laboratories Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2019, and the statement of
Profit and Loss, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other exptanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in _conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March
2018, and loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Audifor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Staternents section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter .
We draw attention to Note 28 in the standalone financial statements which describe the

reconstruction of financial records and varicus legal proceedings as follows: -

(a)Based on the information provided to us by the Management, the books of accounts for the
financial years ended 31st March 2011 & 31! March 2012 were reconstructed by the
Management post 12th November 2011 ‘

(b) The matters relating to several financial and non-financial irregularities pertaining to period
prior to 12th November 2011 are currently sub-judice and the impact of the various legal
proceedings would be made in the standalone financial statements of the Company as and
when the outcome of the above uncertainties becomes known and the consequential
adjustments / disclosures are identifiable / determinable. The Company has represented to
us that based on the steps taken by the Management and evidence available so far, any
financial impact on the standalone financial statements of the Company is likely to be
significantly fow. o

“Our report is not modified in respect of these matters.



Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be

communicated in our report.

Key audit matters

Auditor’s Response

Going concern assumption

The Company has losses from last
many years and continuing in loss for
the current audit period also. Hence
we were required fo assess whether
the going concern assumption is
appropriate.

Our Audit Procedures included:

Review of management’'s budgets to gain.an
understanding of the inputs and process
underpinning the cash flow model prepared for
the going concern assessment.

Discussion with the management on the cash
flow position and the plans for meeting the
requirements of cash deficits, if any, in the
business plans. ,

Evaluation of the plans of the Company for
becoming cash positive from operations and
becoming profitable over a period.

We have also evaluated the disclosures
provided in the standalone financial statements
to ensure that this aspect has
appropriately disclosed.

Impairment of Fixed Assets

| Non-recognition  of  impairment

provision on fixed assets.

Our Audit procedures included:

Checks to identify if the plant is performing
below the rated capacity.

Review of all Long pending capital advances as
at date of the financials.

Review the assessment made by the
management and evaluating whether those are
mitigating the risk of not considering the
provision for impairment as at date of the
financials. '
Review that there is no significant movement in
the land price as per registration value
prescribed by State Government which calls for
the impairment, if any.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report and Management
Discussion & Analysis Report but does not include the standalone financial statements and

our auditors’ report thereon.

Qur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

been |-




in connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for
Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in india, including the Indian accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities:
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting untess management
either intends to fiquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process. :

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements. -

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We zlso:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resufting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve coliusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls. ‘



» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
' accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the reiated disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in s manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. ' :

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them ali
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation preciudes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order"), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. —

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account. :



(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements compty with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31
March 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal finanéial controls over financial reparting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in '
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. The‘Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
pesition in its standalone financial statements — Refer Note 29 to the financial
statements;

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including denvative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

3. As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the remuneration paid by the
company to its directors is in accordance with the prescribed provisions and the
remuneration paid to every director is within the limit specified under Section 197.

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP

Chartered Accountants '
Firm's Registration No.0039905/5200018

S. Prasana Kumar
Partner ,
Membership No. 212354

Place of Signature: Mangatore
Date: 18" May 2019.



Annexure A . .
Referred to in paragraph 1 on ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of
our report of even date to the members of Zenotech Laboratories Limited {“the
Company”} on the standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended 31
March 2018. '

(i) Inrespect of the Company's fixed assets:

(iif)

(v)

v)

(a)

(b)

(©)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed
assets by which all fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a period
of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. Pursuant to the programme, certain fixed assets were physically
verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, and according to
the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the records
examined by us and based on the examination of the conveyance deeds
provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable
properties of the land and buildings which are frechold, are held in the name
of the Company as at Balance Sheet date.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is
reasonabte. The discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks
and the book records were not material and have been dealt with in the books of
account,

Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act and hence
3(iii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has neither given any loan, guarantees or security nor
made any investment during the year covered under section 185 and 186 of the
Act. Therefore clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the
meaning of the Act and the rules made there under and hence clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to maintain cost records specified by the Central

- Government under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Act.



(vii)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of
the Company examined by us, , the Company has generally been regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, Goods and
Services Tax{(GST), cess and any other statutory dues as applicable with the
appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise, Goods and Services Tax(GST), cess and any other statutory dues
were in arrears, as at 31 March 2019 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no dues of Income-tax,
Sales Tax, Service tax, Goods and Services Tax(GS3T), Duty of customs,
Excise duty and Value added tax as at 31 March 2018, which have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute, except
as stated below:

Name of | Nature  of Amount Period to which | Forum  where
statute dues amounts relates | dispute is
Rs in ‘000* pending
The Finance | Service Tax NIL# FY 2¢07-08 Commissioner
Act, 1994 ' of Central
Excise and

Service Tax,
Hyderabad IV

The Finance | Service Tax NIL# FY 20067-08 to | Commissioner
Act, 1994 2008-10 of Central
Excise and

Service Tax,
“Hyderabad IV

The Finance | Service Tax 10,124 FY 2006-07 and | Commissioner
Act, 1994 2007-08 of - Central
Excise and
Service  Tax,
Hyderabad IV

AP. Vat Act, | VAT 1,685 FY 2009-10 to | Deputy
2005 2012-13 Commissicner
Commerciai

Taxes (Appeal)

The Finance | Service Tax 3,405* Prior to Financial i N/A
Act, 1994 year  2011-12
(Service Tax)
A.P. Val Act, | Sales Tax 3g = Pricr to Financial | Commercial
2005 year  2011-12 | Tax Officer,
{Sales Tax) Srinagar Colony
Circle
The Customs | Customs 5,160 Prior to Financial | Principal
Act, 1862 Duty year 2011-12 | Commissioner
- {Customs Act) of Customs,

Hyderabad




(viii)

{ix)

()

- (i)

(xif)

(xii)

(xiv)

{(xv)

{xvi)

* excluding penalty & Interest.

** Provision for Service Tax on Forex outgé, Wealth Tax and Sales Tax for
which no records/ details are available with the Company and hence Interest
not ascertained.

# Principal portion fully settled in‘ this year...

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowmgs to
government agencies which are as follows:

Name of the Lender Period . Amount (Rs. in ‘000)*

Technology Development Board | FY 2011-18 27,645

* amount of accrued interest only.

According to the informa'tion and explanations given to us, the Company has utilized
the money raised by way of Rights issue of Equity shares during the year for the
purposes for which they were raised.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year
nor have we been informed of such case by the management.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the managerial
remuneration has been paid in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated
by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act,

The Company is not a. Nidhi company in accordance with Nidhi Rules 2014,
Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xii) of the Order are not applicable,

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations
given to us, all the transactions entered into with the related parties during the year
are in compliance with Section 177 and Section 188 of the Act where applicable and
the details have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required

- by the applicable Indian accounting standards.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares / fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under
review. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xiv) of the Order are not applicable.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with them.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company is not required to be registered under Sect:on 45-1A of
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, :

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.0039908/5200018

S. Prasana Kumar

Partner

Membership No. 212354
Place of Signature: Mangalore
Date: 18" May 2019



Annexure B

Referred to in paragraph 2(f) on ‘Report on Other Legal and Regufatory Requirements’ of
our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Zenotech Laboratories
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year-ended on that date.

~ Management's Respcnsibiiity for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Conirols over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
‘maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013. :

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial conirols over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. QOur
audit of internal financial conirols over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
Or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
hasis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabitity of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controf over financiat reporting inciudes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable assurance
that transactions. are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
. the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors



of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent Em:tahons of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.003990S8/5200018

S. Prasana Kumar
Partner
Membership No. 212354

Place of Signhature: Mangalore
Date: 18" May 2019.



Zenotech Laboratories Limited

CIN: L274060AP1989PLCO10122

Standatone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018

(Al amounis In thousands of Indian Rupees except share data and where otherwise stated)

. As at As at
Particulars Note Ne. 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
ASSETS
Non Current Assets
{g) Proparty, Plant and Equipment 3 4,31,088 4,44 309
(b) Capital Work-In-Progress 3 1,689,514 23,239
(c) Financial Assets

(i) Invastments 4{a) - .
(i) Others 4{b) 6,368 3,829
Income Tax Assels (net) 7,930 3,340
(d) Qther Non-current Asssis 5 38.992 28,382
Total Non - Current Assets 5,583,890 503,209
Current Assets
{a} Inventories 8 5,842 8,208
(b) Financial Assets
{i) Trade Receivabies 7(a) 23,581 39
(ii) ©Tash and Cash Equivalents 7(b) 1,314,963 2,84 048
(i) Bank batances cther than above 7(b) 560 7,560
(iv) Other Financial Assels 7(c) 3,180 4,252
(c) Other Current Assets 8 26,817 10,087
Totat Current Asseis 1.91.943 3,14,204
Total Assets 8,45,833 8,17413
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(&) Equify Share capital 9 6,10,306 6,10,306
(b} Other Equity 10 (2,21,323) {1,99,130)
Total Equity 3,588,983 4,20,176
LIABILITIES
Non-current Liabilities
{a) Financiai Liablities - .
(b} Provisions 11 (a) 3.372 2,770
Total Non - Current Liabilities 3,372 2,770
Gurrent Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(1} Borrowings 12 (&) 2,02,400 -
(i) Trade payables
(a) Tota! outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises 12 (b} 3,849 -
(b) Tota outstanding duss olher than above 12 (b) 37,204 54,132
(iii} Other firancial liabilities 12 {c} 33,427 88,078
(1) Other Current Liabilities 13 4,507 84,555
{c} Provisions ' 14 (k) 1,714,891 1,67.702
Total Current Liabilities 4,563,478 3.84,467
Total Equity and Liabilities 8,45,833 817,413
See zceompanying notes referred to above form an integrai part of Finarcial Staterments
Summary of Significant accounling policies 182
As per our Report of even date attached
for PKF $ridhar & Saathanam LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Direclors of
Chartered Accountants Zenotech Laboratories Limited
Firm Regisiration Number: 0022805/3200018 CiN: L27100AP1989RLC010122
5.Prazana Kumar Azadar Hussain Khan Kavita R, 8hah R.S.Parihar
Partner Chairman Director Chief Executive Officer
Membership No.: 212354 DIN:012193142 DIN:02586732
Poly K.V. Abdul Gafoor Mohammad
Chief Financial Officer Company Secrefary

Place: Mangalore - Place: Mumbai
Daie: May 18, 2018 Date: May 18, 2018



Zenotech Laboratories Limited
CIN: L27100AP1989PLCT10122

Statement of profit and loss for the Year ended March 31, 2019

(Al amaunts In thousands of Indian Rupees except share daia and where otherwise slated)

Vi
Vil
Vil

Xl

X

Particulars

Income

Revenue from Operation
Other income

Total Income (+11)

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed

Changes in inventories of finished gouds, Stock-in-Trade
and work-in-prograss

Employze benefits expense

Finance cosls

Depreciation and amoriisation axpenses

Oiher expenses

Total Expenses (IV}

Profit / {Loss) before exceptional items and 1ax {HI1-)
Exceptional items
Profit f (Loss) before tax (V)
Tax expense:
{1) Current lax
(2) Defetiad tax
Profit/ (Loss) for the period (VII-VIL)
QOther Comprehensive ncome
A (it tems that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
Remeasurement of smployee benefits obligations

be rectassified (o profit orioss
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (IX+X)

Earnirig per equity share
{face value per equity share Rs 10 each}
(1) Basic (Rs)
(2) Diluted (Rs.)

Note No.  Forthe Year ended
31 March 2019
14 1,30,291
15 47,097
1,77,388
1% 7.055
16 119
17 48,804
18 1,177
3 42,020
19 1,08,483
208,658
(31,270)
3 .
(31,270}
31,270)
114¢) 77
{31,193}
21
(0.51)
{0.51}

Sse accompanying note referred to above form an integral part of Financial Statements

Summary of Significant accounting policies

As per our Report of even date aitached

for PKF Sridhar & Santhianam LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number; 0035308/$200018

S. Prasana Kumar
Pariner
Membership No: 212354

Place: Mangalore
Date: May 18, 2019

1&2

For the year ended
31 March 2018

1,11,442
23,691

1,365,133

8,105

{119)
50,657
24,494
39,031

1,31,474

2,53.643

{1,18,510)

{1,18,510}

11,18,510)

613

for and un behaif of the Beard of Directors of
Zenotech Laboratories Limited
CIN; L27100AP$920PLC01G122

Azadar Hussain Khan
Chairman
DIN:01218312

Poly K.V,
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 18, 2019

Kavita R. Shah
Diregtor
DIN:02566732

Abdul Gafoor Mohammad
Company Secretary

(1,17,887)

(2.24)
(2.24)

R.8.Parihar
Chief Executive Officer



Zenotech Laboratories Limited
Standatone Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Al amaunts in thousaads of Indian Rupess extept share data and where otherwise stated)

A. Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before taxation
Adjusiments forr
Depreriation and amwortisation
Amounts written back
Unrealised forgign exchange loss, net
Irderzst expenies
Interest ircomie
Operating cash flows before working capital changes
Changes in Working Capilal:
(Increase) decreass in rade reveivables
(Increase) decraase In inventories
(Decrease)f increase in trade payables
(Increase)f decreass in other financial assets
(Inurease) decreass n non-current finarcial sssats
(Increase) decreae in non-curtenf assels
fncreass) decrease in other curient assols
(Drcreasa) incresse in provisions for non current liabilities
(Deernase) Niraass in provisions for current Fabilities
(Dexreass) increase in other finandal liabiiies
(Diecressel increasa in other current Babilities
Cash used in operations
Income laxes paid/ TDS {net)
Net cash used in operating activities (A)

B.Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for Purchase of property plant equipmeant
{inciuding Capital advance & Work in Progress)

Deposils towards margin money
Interest income received
Net sash provided by! (used in) investing activities

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Regayment to Biotech Consortium India Limited Term Loan
Repayment to Sun Pharmaceutical Industriss Limited (Holding company) Term Loan
Proceeds fram issue of equity share capital - Rights 1ssue
Procesds from shorbderm borrowings, net
Repayrment of long-term borrowings
Interest paid
Net cash provided by financing activities {C)

Net increasef {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year( A+B+C)

Cash and cash eguivalents at the begirming of the year

Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the year (refer Nofe 7 (b) }

Note 1: Cash and cash equivalents does nol include

For the Year

ended

31 March 2019

{31,270)

42,020

(32687
,244
1477

(12.483)

{31,998}

(23.542)
2,366
16,184
1,072
(1.439)
5337
(16.720)
602
4,289
(1on
(81,214)

{1,35,844)
(4.590)

(1,40,434)

{1.80,33%)
6,000
12,482

{1,61,853)

2,02,400

162,197)

1,50,203

(1,52,084)
2,64.048

1,531,964

For the Year ended
31 March 2018

{1,18,510}

39,031
124
24,494
(17,308}
{72,169)

(28)
1,032
2,790
(3,154)
3
(6.930)
(14,103)
382
(15,887}
1,211
(52.952)
(1,59,712)
@2:801)
(1,62,513)

{38,245)
{5.600)
17,308

(26,637)

(1,112)
(5,12,000}
11,97,138
{29.648)
{1.86,000)
468,268

2,79,238
4,810

284,048

restricied cash balance (Margin money) of Rs 1,560 (previous year: Rs 7,560).

Note 2: Cash flow statements has hasn prepared undere " Indirsct Method” on Statement of Cash flows i accordance with the Ind AS standard.

Mete 3; Please refer Met Dabt Reco annexed
See aroompaying notes referred to above form an integral part of financial statements.

Sumniary of Significant aguaunting policies
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Zenotech Laboratories Limited
Standatonie Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

{All amounts i thousands of indian Rupses except share data and where otherwise siafed)

Net debt reconciliation
This sechion sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in nei debt for each of the pericds presented.

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Cash and cash equivaients 1,531,864 284,048
Liquid Investrments - -
Current borrawings (Including interast accrued) {2,04,642) (53,262)
Mon-curretit DoIrowings - -
Net debt (72,678} 2,30,786

Other assets Liabiiities from financing activities
Finance
Cash and Liguid lease Non-current Current
bank Investments  obligalions borrowings borrowings Total

Net debt as at 1 April 2017 4,840 - - - {7,57,618} (7,52,808)
Cash flows 2,79,238 - - 5,42,760 §,21,998
Inlerest expenses B - - . (24,494) {24,494)
Interest paid - - - - 4,586,000 1,86,000
Net debt as at 31 March 2018 2,84,048 “ - - {53,262) 2,30,786
Cash flows (1,52,084) - - (2,02,400) {3,54,484}
Interest expenises - - . - (1,177) (AT
Interest paid - - - 52,197 52,197

Net debt as at 31 March 2019 1,31,884 - - - (2,04,642) {72,678}




Zenotech Laboratories Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March, 2018

(All amounts in thousands of Indian Rupees except share data and where otherwise staied)

A. Equity share Capital

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018

6,10,3066

Changes in Equily Share Capital

As at 31.02.2019

6,10,306

Particulars

As at 31.03.2017

3,44,275

Changes in Equity Share Capital

2,686,031

As at 31.03.2018

6,10,306

Reserves and Surplus
) . Totat other equi

B. Other Equity Securities premiwurm Retained earnings quity
Balance as at 1st April 2017 11,64,324 {21,67,663) {10,03,329)
Additions during the year 8,31,107 - 9,31,i07
Profit for the year - (1,18,511) (1.18,511)
Cther comgrehensive income- Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations B13 613
Total comprehensive income for the year - {4,17,858) {117,898}
Other Equity as on 31st March 2018 20,95,431 {22,85,561) {1,90,130}
Batance as at 1 April 2018 20,95,431 {22,85,561} (1,90,139)
Profit for the year - (31,276} {31,270}
Gther comprehensive income- Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations - 77 77
Total comprehensive income for the year - {31,193} {31,193)
Other Equity as on 31st March 2019 20,95,431 {23,18,754) {2,21,323)

Nature and purpose of reserves:

Securities premium is tsed to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of Section 52 of the

Comparies Acl, 2013

As per our Report of even date attached
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Zenotech Laboratories Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 20198
{All amounts in thousands of Indian Rupees except share data and where otherwise stated)

1.1 Corporate Information

Zenotech Laboratories Limited ( the "Company” } is & public limited company listed on BSE. The Company is a pharmaceutical specially generic injectables
company engaged in the area of manufackuring biotechnolony products. The Company's injectables product perifolio priraarily serves niche therapy areas like
angolagy and anasthesiology.

1.2 Going congern

The Company is well placed to meet the cash bum requirements in the caming periods for it to develop and build the business to a profitable level as per the
piojections prepared by the Company. Henge the Campany's financials have been prepared on a going concerm basis.

1.3 Consolidated Financial Statements

The Books of accounts and cther relsted records/dosuments of the overseas subsidiaries of the Company were missing and due to non-availability of those
recordshinfosmation, compiaint before the Hon'bie Economic Offences Court, Nampally, Hyderabad, under the provisions of Section 630 of ersiwhilz
Companies Act, 1858 was filed against the former Managing Direcior, Late Dr. Jayaram Chigurupati, who was in complete "control over the Company's affairs
during the period of those events”, which is currently sub-judice, The Gompany has evatuated and concluded that it is net conbrotling the US Subsidiary as per
Ind AS 110 Consciidated Financial Statements basis its inabilify to exercise power over the investes. Further, the Company's Board has initiated the winding-
up pracess for the defunct subsidiaries in Brazit and Nigeria. The Company Is in contact with consultants of respective countries to file the winding-up
applications and adhere to the laws of the country. Accordingly, the Company is of the view that it dogs not have subsidiaries within the definition of ind AS
110 and hence is nat required to prepare and present a Consolidated Financial Statement.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements comply in ali material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) ratified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the
Act) [Companiss (Indian Accounting Standards} Ruies, 2015 {as amended}] and other relavant provisions of the Act.

Basis of preparation and presentation

These financial statements have been prepared cn a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of
gach reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

The financial siatements are presented in INR and all values are roundad to the nearest thousands {INR 000), except when otferwise indicated.

Functional and Preséntation Currency

llems included in financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates
{"the functional currency”). Indian rupee is the functional and presentation currency of the Company.

IND AS 27 Separate financial statemants
An entity is required to aceount for its investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates either:

(8) atcostor
(b)  in accordance with IND AS 109. Such cost shall be ¢ost as per IND AS 27 of deemed cost.

The investmenis in subsidiries is recagnisad at deemed cost
2.7 Summary of significant accounting policies
a. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:

» Expacted to be reatised or inferided to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

> Held primarily for the purpose of trading

> Expecied to be realised within twelve months after the reporting pericd, or

> Cash or cash equivalent uniess restricted from being exchanged or used to seille a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assels are classified as non-current.

A liabitity is current whert

> It is expectad to be setiled in normal cperating cycie

> It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

>l is due to be settied within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

>Thare is no unconditionat right to defer the setliement of the liability for at least twelve maonths after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other Kabitiies as non-current.

The operating cycie is the ime between fhe acyuisitions of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. Congidering the nature of
activity, the Company has determined the operating cycle as twelve ronths.



b, Foreign currencies

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective funclional cumency spot rates at the date of the transaction.

Mornetary assets and liabiliies dencminated in foreign currencies are transiated at the funclionat currency spot rates of exchange af the reporting date.
Exchange differences arising on settiement or translation of monetary items are recegnised in profit or loss with ¢he exception of the foliowing:

> Exchange diffgrences arsing on monetary items that forms part of a reporting endity’s net investment and Loans & Advances in a foreign operation are
recognised in profit or loss in the separate financial statements of the reporting entity as appropriate.

Transactions in curtencies other than the Company's functionat currency {foreign eurrencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates
of the ransactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate prevailing
on the last day of the reporting period.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are transtated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates af the date when the fair vaiue is
determined.

G. Use of estimates and Judgement

The preparation of financiat statements in conformity with IND AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assurmptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reporied amounts of assets, liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and contingent liabifities at the date of
financizt statements, income and expenses during the period. Actuat results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underfying assumptions are
reviewed cn an on-geing basis. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in cutcomes that require a araterial adjusiment to the
carrying amount of assats or liabilities affecled in future periods. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimataes are
reviged and in future periods which are affected.

Application of zesounting policies that require critical accounting estimates and assumptions having the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in
financizl statements are as foillows:

i}  Useful life of PPE

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by the
management based on technical assessment. The management believes that depracialion rates curently used fairly reflect its estimate of the useful lives of
property, plant and equipmant.

i}  Measurement of defined benefit plan obligation

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity pian and other post-empioyment feave absences benefits and the present vaiue of the gratuity obligation and leave
absence abligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuaticn involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
develepments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, fulure satary increases and mortality rates. Pue o the complexities involved
in the valuation and ifs fong-lerm nature, a defined benefit obfigation is highly sensifive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
sach reporting date.

The parameter mast subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the managament
considers the interest rates of government bonds in curmencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The morality rate is based on publicly available martality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tabies fend to change anly at interval in response to
demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates in India. Further details about gratuity
obligations are given in Noie 11(c).

iii} Impairment of non-financial assets

Property Plant & Equipment are testad for impairment when the events coour or changes in cireumsiances indicate that recoverabifity amount of asset or cash
generating unit is less than its  carrying value. The recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and is value in use. The fair value
less costs of disposat calcutation is based on available data from binding sates transaciions, conducted at arm's lenigth, for similar assels or observable
market prices iess incremental costs for dispesing of the asset. The vaiue in use calculation is based on a Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The
calculation involves use of significant estimates and assumptions which includes turnover and eamings muitiples, growth rates and net margins used to
czlculate the projected cash flows, risk adjusted discount rate, future economic and market conditions.

iv} Write down in value of Inventories
Inventory write downs are accounted considering the nature of inventory, ageing, liquidation plan and net realisable value. Any changes in these estimaies will
impact upon the write down value of Inveniories.

v} Estimation for Litigations

The Company has been advised by it's legal counsel, the probability of outflow of resources and based on this the contingent liabilily has been recognised.
Any change in the estimatad probability will impact upon the contingent liabilily.

d.  Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be recsived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly ransaction between market participants at the
meazurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to seil the asset or transfer the liabiiity takes piace either:
> i the principal market for the asset or liability, or

> in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principat or the most advaniageous market must be accessible by the Compariy.

The fair value of an asset or a fiability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their ecenomic best interest.



A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate gconomic benefits by using the assetinits
highest and best use or by sailing it to ancther miarket participant that would use the asset in its highast and best use.

The Gompany uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the dircumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant chsarvable inputs and minimising the use of uncbservable inputs.

Al gssets and liabilities for which fair vaiue is measured or disclesed in the financial sialements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whoie:

> Level 4 - Quoted {(unadjusied) market prices in aclive markets for identical assets or labilities.

> Level 2 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is direcdly or indirectly chservable.

> Level 3 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurming basis, the Company determines whether fransfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest leve! inpul that is slgmificant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the and of gach reporfing period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assels and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of
the asset or liability and the tevel of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This nele summarises accounting policy for fair value, Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant nofes.

> Quantilative disclosures of fair value measurement higrarchy (Refer Note 22 (a) & (b))
e. Revenue recognition

With effact from 1 April 2018, the Company has adopled Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Cuslomers’ which introduces a new five-step approach to
rmeasuring and recognising revenue from contracts with customers. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised al an amount fhat reftects the consideration fo
which an entity expects to be enfitled in exchange for services to a cusiomer.

The Company has opted for the medified retrospective application permitted by Ind AS 115 upon adoption of new standard. Accordingly, the standard has
been applied for the year ended 31st March 2019 only (i.e. the initial application period). Modified retrospective application atso requires the recegnition of
cumutative impact of adoption of Ind AS 115 on all coniracis as at 1st Apri} 2018 {‘fransition date’) in equity and the impact on such transition date is not

rraterial.
Also, the Company has elected to use the praciicat expadient that there is no financing component invalved when the credit periog offered to customers is

l2ss than 12 months (also refer Credit Risk).
Priof {6 adoption of IND AS 115, the Company's revenue was primarily comprised of Revenue from Contracis and Interest income. The recognition of these

revenue streams is largely unchanged by Ind AS 115,

Sale of goods:

Revenua from confracts with customers is recognised when control of the geods or services are transferred, being when the products are delivered to the
customer. Delivery osours when the products have baen shipped 1o the specific focation, the risks of ohseolesnenca and loss have been transferred to the
Cusiomer. Revenue from these saies is recognised based on the price specified int the contract, net of the discounts. No element of financing is involved as
the sales are made with an cradit term which is consistent with market practice.

Rendering of Services:

Revenue from sate of services is recognised in accordance with the terms of the refevant agreements as accepled and agreed with the customers. Upfront
nen-refurndable payménts received are deferred and recognised as revenue over which the related services are performed.

Price variarce is accoured as and when the amounts are confirmed as recoverable.

Interest income
Interest on depasits is recognized on the time proportion methed using the underlying interest rales.

f. Taxes

Current income tax

Income fax expense comprises of cuent and deferred tax. income tax exponses is recognised in profit of loss except to the extent that it redates to items
recognised in OCH or directty in equity in which case it is recogniesd in OCH or girectly in equity respectively. Current tax is the expected tex payabie on the
taxabile profit for the year using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reperting period and any adjustments to the tax payabie in respect
of previous years.,

The fax currently payabie is based on taxable profit for the year, if any. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax' as reported in the Statement of Profit and
Loss because of itams of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or daductible.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the Rability method o temporary differences between the tax basas of assets and liabilities and their carrying amourts for
financia! reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recogrised for all deductible temporary differances, the carry forward of unuised tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
pssats are recognised to the extent that i is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry forward of unusad tax credits and unused tax losses can be utitised.

The carmying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewad at sach reporting date and reduced to the extent that it Is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit wilt be avatiable to aliow all or part of the deferred tax asset 1o be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax asssels are re-assessed ateach reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probabie that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assels to be recovered,

Dafarred lax assets and liabililies are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Defarced tax relating to items recognised outside profit or 0ss Is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in QCl or directly in equity.

Daferred tax assets and defered tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off deferred tax assels against deferred tax liabilities and the
defarred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.



g. GST paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assels are recognised net of the GST paid, except

> When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of
the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense ilem, as appiicable.

> Whan recsivables and payablas are stated with the amount of tax included, the net amount of tax recoverable from or payable to the taxation authority, is
inciuded as part of receivabies or payables In the bafance sheet.

h.  Property, plant and equipment
Freehold land is carried at historical cost.

Fived asseis (Tangible/ Intangible) are stated at cost less accumulated depreciaticn/amortization and impairment fosses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase
price and any atiribulabie cost of bringing the assat loits working condition for its intended use.

Expenditure directly refating to canstrustion activity is capitalized to the extent those relate to the construction activity or is incidental therelo.

Gains and losses on dispesal of a property plant and equipmeant are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of
property plant and equipment and are recognised in other income/nther expenses in the stalement of profit and loss.

Degreciation is fully provided using the Slraight Line Method (SEM) over the useful lives of the assets considered by the mariagement's technical
assessment, s given below:

1) Faciory Building 30 years

2)  Plant & Machinery 10 to 20 years
3}  Funiture & Fittings 10 years

4)  Motor Vehicles 8 years

5)  Office Equipment 5 years

6) EDP Equipment 3 years

Depreciation and amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed pesodically, including at each financiai year end. Depreciation is charged on a
proporfionate basis for ail assets purchased and soid during the year.

Assels costing below Re.5,000/- are depreciated in full in the same year.

Tre cost of fixed pesets not ready for thelr intended use before such date, are disclosed as capitat work-in-progress and are carried at cost.

For transition to the Ind AS, the Company has decided to continue with the camying value of alt of its Property, Plant and Equipment as at April 01, 2015 (
transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP as its deemed cost as of transition date.

i. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use are capilatised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an enfity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Bormowing cost alse includes exchange differences to the
extent regarded as an adiustment to the borrowing cosis.

i Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories comprises cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other cosis
incurred in bringing the inventories ta their present lecation and condition. The method of determining cost of various categories of inventories is as below:

i) Raw materiais, Packing matedals, Stores and spares - First - in - First Out method.
iiy Finished goods and Work-in-process - Weighted average method, which comprises direct material costs and appropriate overheads.

Inventories are stated net of write downs or allowances on account of obsalete, damaged or siow moving inventores.

Mef realisabla value is the esfimated salling price in the crdinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and costs necessary to affect the
saie. .

k. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each feporting date, whether there is an indication that an assel may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for en asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's
or cast-generating urit's (CGU) fair value less costs of dispesal and its value in use. Recoverabie amount is determined for an individual asset, uniess the
aesel does nol generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Company's assels. When the carrying amount of an asset or
CBU excesds its racoverable amount, the asset Is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflecls cument market
assessments of the ime value of money and the risks specific to the assat or the cash generating unit (CGU). In determining fair value fess costs of disposal,
recent market ransactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
coroberated by valuation multipies, quoted share prices for publicly fraded companies or other available fai vaiue indicators,

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on invenlories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on delaiied budgets and forecast calcutations, which are prepared separately 10 reach the Company's CGU to
which individual assets are allocated.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or
have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's recaverable amount, A previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed only if fiere has been a change in the assumptions used fo determine the asset's recoverable amount since the tast impalrment lcss was
recognised. The revarsal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset doss not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recogrised for the asset in prior period years. Such reversal is recognised in
the stalement of profit or icss.



. Provisions, contingent Liabilities & contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obiigation (fagal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying ecenomic benefits will be required to seltie the obtigation and a refiable estimate can be made of the amount of the abligation.

If the effect of the time vatue of morey is material, provisions are discounted using a currert pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropiate, the risks specific to
the liability. When discounting is used, the increass in the provision due 1o the passage of ime is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent assels are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts only in case of inflow of gconomic benefits is probable.

Corntingent liabifites ara disciased in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts for possible obligations which will be confErmed only by future
events not wholly within the contrals of the Company or present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to satiie the obligation or relisble estimate of the amounts of the obligation cannct be made.

m. Retirement and otiter employee benefits

iy Gratuity: Gratuity liability is a defined benefit abligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation made at the and of each financial year under
the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gainsfiosses comprise experience adiustments and the effect of changes in aciuarial assumptions and are
rectgnized immediately in the other camprahensive Income s income on the basis of valuation by an independent Actuary. The liability is unfunded.

fi) Provident Fund: A refirement benefit in the form of provident fund scheme is a defined contribution and the contribution is charged to the statement of profit
aind loss of the year when the contribution to the respactive fund is due. There are no cther obligations clher than the contribution payable fo the respective
fund.

fii) Compensated Absences: Liability in respect of compensated absence is determined and charged to the staterment of profit and loss on the basis of
valuation by an independsnt actuary.
n. Earings per shares:

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity sharehotders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of shares cutstanding during the ysar is adjusted for events such as bonus issue that have
changed the number of shares outstanding, without & correspunding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the year aftributable 1o equity sharsholders and the weighted average number of
equity shares oulstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all diutive potential equity shares.

o, Leases:

Company as lessor:
Rental Income from oparaling lease is generally recognised on straight- line basis over the {erm of the lease,

p. Financial instrurnents

A financiat instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial fiabllity or equity instrument of ancther entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised iniially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair vaiue through prafit or loss, transaction costs
that are attributable to the acquisition: of the financial ssset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that sequire delivery of assets within a time frame
establishad by regutation or canvention in the Tarket piace {regular way trades) are recognised on the trade dale, i.e., the date that the company commits to
purchasz of seff the asset.

For purposes of subsequent measurements, ‘debt instrumenit' is measured at the amartised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business modet whose objective is 1o hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash fows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the company. After initial measwement, such financial assals are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amorlised cost is cakeulated by taking into aceount any discount or premium on acquisiton and fees or costs that are an
intagral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. Tha losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit
or loss. This calegory generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Equity investments

All equity invesiments in subsidiaries are measured at cost less diminution other than temporary. Alt equity investments in scope of ind AS 109 are measured
at fair value.

If $he Campany degides to classily an equity instrument as at EVTOCI, then all fair value changas on the instrument, exciuding dividends, are recognized in
the OCL. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCi to P&L, aver: on sale of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain of loss
within equity,

Equity instrumnents included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with alt changes recognized in the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, & part of a financial asset or part of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised i.e. removed from the Company’s
balance shest when:

> the Company has transferred its righls to receive cash flows from the asset | and aither
> the Comparny has transferred substantially ali the risks and rewards of the asset, or
> the Company hias neither transferred nor retained substantially ail the risks and rewards of the asset, but has fransferred controf of the asset.

On derecognition of a financials asset in its entirety, the difference betwaen the assets canying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss will be recognissed as profit or loss on disposal.



Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit foss {EGL) model for measurement and recognition of impairmeant logs on the following
financial assets and credit risk exposure:

> Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured af amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, frade receivables and bank balance

> Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115

The company follows 'simpiified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss aliowance on;

> Trade recaivables o contract revenue receivables; and

> The application of simplified approach dees not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based
or: fifetime ECL at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

In aecordance with Ind AS 108, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECE) model for measurement and recoguition of impairment loss on the foliowing
financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amorlised cost.

For recognition of impairment less on other finiancial assels and risk exposire, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase
in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 months ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit
risk has increased significandly, lifetime ECL is used. if, in a subsequent pericd, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is ro longer a
significant increase in credit risk since Initial recognifion, then the entity reverds to recognising impairment loss allowance basad on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expecied credit losses resulting from all possible defauit events over the expected life of a financial instrurnent. The 12-months ECL is a
portion of the lifetime EGL which results from defauit events that are possible within 12 months afler the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity
expacts o receive {i.e., all cash shorffalfs), discounted at the original ESR. When estimating the cash flows, an enlity is required o consider:

> All contraclual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and simiar options) over the expected life of the finarncial instrument.
However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining
contractual term of the financial instrument.

> Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or ofher eredit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

As a practicsd expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on porifolio of its trade receivables. The provision
matrix is based on its historically abserved default rates over the expected life of the trade receivablas and is adjusted for forward-iocking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and ehanges in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. On that basis, the Compatiy
esimates the following provision matrix based on the assumpiions which are derived based on the expected outcomaes.

ECL impairment logs atiowance {or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loas (P&L). This
amount is reflected under the head 'other expenges' in the PEL. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

> ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurament of those assels in the balanice sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying
amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company dees not reduce impairment aflowance from the gress carrying amount.

> For aszessing Increass in credit risk and impalrment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characiaristics
with the ctjective of facititafing an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, foans and borrowings, payables as appropriate.

Ali finangial liabitities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction cost

Subsequent measurement

The messurement of financial labiities depends on their classification, as described below:

> Financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabittties at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or foss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred far the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loas.

Financial iabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the Initlal date of recagaition, and only if the
criteria in ind AS 100 are satisfied. For liabilifies designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses altributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized in
OCi. These gains/ less are not subsequently transferred o P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Al other
changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and Ioss, The Company has not designated any financial Habity as at fair value
though profit or loss.

> Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initiai recognition financial liabilities if any are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method, Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or less when the liabiliies are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amorlised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisiion and fees or costs that are an integrat part of the EIR, The EIR
amorlisation is included as finance costs in the siatemnent of profit and loss,

> Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the abligation under the liahility is discharged or cancelted or expires. When an existing financial Hability is replaced
by ancther from the same lendar on substansially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantiaily madified, such an exchange or
madification is treated as the derecagnition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.



> Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in Balance Sheet when, and only when, the Company has a legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and intends either to setile on a net basis or o realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneousiy.

4. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eqglivalenis in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an criginal maturity of three months or
lens, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statzment of cash flows, cash and cash eguivaients consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of oulstanding bank
overdrafis as they are considered an integral part of the Campany’s cash management,

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, wheraby profit/(foss} before tax is adjusted for the effecis of fransactions of no cash nature and any
deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. Cash fiow for the year is classified by operating, investing and financing activities.

r. Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

(i) New standards notified and adepted by the Company

MCA on 29 March 2018 notified the new standard for revenue recognition (effective from 1 Aprit 2018) which overhauls the existing revenue recognition
standards including knd AS 18 —~ Revenue and Ind AS 11 — Construction contracts. The new slandard provides a confrol-based revenue recognition mode! and
provides a five-step application princigle to be fallowed for revenue recognition:

i Identification of the contracts with the customer

ii. Identificalion of the performancs obligations in the contract

. Determingtion of the transaction price

iv. Allocation of trarsaction price to tha performance obligations in the contract (as identified in step i}

V. Recognition of revenue when the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

A numiber of other standards had been modified on miscelianeous issues with effect from 1st April 2018. Such changes include principle for transfer of asset
to, or from, Investment Property (Amendment to ind AS 40), determination of exchange rate for translation of foreign currency where a pre-payment asset or a
deferred income lizbility is recognized (Amendment to Ind AS 21), segregation of deductible temporary differences in accordance with tax laws and assessing
them on that basis to recognise deferred lax asset (Amendment to Ind AS 12), permitling edaction of fair value or equity method of accounting for investments
in associates and joint veniures by venture capilal, mutual fund and other similar organisations (Amendmaent to Ind AS 28) and applicability of disclosure
requirements 10 interests classified as hald for sale or as discontinued operation {Amendment to Ind AS 112).

None of thesa amendmenis have any matesal effect on the Company's financial siatements.

(i) New standards notified but not yet effective

Ind AS 116 Leases

On 30 March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notified Ind AS 116, ‘Leases’ as part of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS))
Amendment Rules, 2019. Ind AS 116 repiaces existing standard on leases i.e. Ind AS 17, Leases with effect fromt aceounting periods beginning on or after 1%
April 2018.

It eliminates the classification of leases as either finance leases or operating leases for a lessee as reguired by Ind AS 17. Ind AS 116 introduces a single
lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and fabilities for all leases with & term of more than 12 months, unless the underying
assel is of low value.

A lesses is required 1o recognise a sight-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying feased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to
make lease payments. Requicements with regard fo lessor accounting are substandially similar to accounting requirements confained in Ind AS 17,
Accordingly, a lessor will continue to classify ifs leases as operating leases or finance Isases, and to account for those two types of ieases differently.

The Company’s operating leases mainly refate to leasing of equigments which is cancellable with 60 days prior notice and is effective from 18th November,
2017,

The Company expects that the adoption of this new standard will not have any significant impact on the Snancial statements.

Other Amendments to the existing standards but not effective

A number of other accounting standards have been modified on miscellaneous issues with effect from 1% April 2019. Such changes include
clarification/guidance on:

a) busingss combinativn accounting in case of obtaining control of a joint operation;

b} accounting in case of cblaining jeint control of an operation wherein there was no joint control eartier;

¢) income tax consequences in ¢ase of dividends;

d) accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatment of an item by tax authorities;

) accounting freatment for specific borrowings post capitatization of corresponding qualifying asset;

f} accourting for prepayment features with negative compensation in case of debt instruments;

g} accounting for plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurring in-between the reporting periods in case of tong-term employee benefit plans;

h)  accounting for long-term interests in asseciates and joint ventures to which the equity method is not applied but that in substance form part of the nef
investment in the associate or joint venture (fong-term interests).

The above amendmerits will come into force from 1% April 2018. The Company does not expect the effect of this on the financial stalements to be material
based on preliminary evaluaiion.
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Zenotech Laboratories Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

(Al amiounts in thousands of Indian Rupees except share data and where otherwise stated)
Note 4: Financial Assets

4(a). Non-gurrent investments

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Investments in equity shares of Subsidiaries# af Deermed cost
Ungquoted

Zenotech Farmaceutica Do Brasil Lida™

39,600 (previous year: 39,600} shares of Reais 10 each

Zengtech Labaratories Limited, Nigeria™
9,99,000 (previous year: 9,99,000) Ordinary shares of Naira 1 each

Zenotech Inc., USA
10,00,000 {previous year: 10,00,000) shares of USD 0.10 each

Investments in equity shares of Other Companies at Deemed cost

Unquoted
Equity shares in Credence Organics Private Limited™

Total Non current investments
l.ess: Provision for diminution in vaiue
Net Non current investments

Total non-current investments

Agaregate amount of quoted invesiments and market value thereof

Aggregate amount of unguoled investmenis

Aggregate amount of impairment in tha value of investments

# Considered as Subsidiaries only for the limiled purpose of Companies Act basis voting rights and not as per Ind AS 110 on

Consolidated Financial Statements

* During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company had decided to wind up its overseas subsidiary namely Zenotech
Pharmaceutica do Brazil Lida in iis Board Meeting dated 13th February, 2017 and Zenotech Laboratories Nigeria Limited vide its
Circular Resolution dated 2nd March, 2017. The process of winding-up of Zenotech Laboratories Nigeria Limited wilt be completed in
F.Y: 2019-20. There is no change in the status of Zenotech Pharmaceutica do Brazil Ltda as on March 31, 2019.

** Investments in shares of Credence Organics Private Limited have been written off as the Company no longer exist.

4(B). Other Non-surrent Financial Assets

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Deposits with Government, pubtic bodies

-Considered good 5,364 3,889
-Credit mpaired 211 211
Margin Money deposits 1,000 -
Others 4 40
Total 6,579 4,140
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables 211 211
Total Other Non-current Financial Assets 6,368 3,929
Note §: Other Non Current Assets
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

{Unsecured, considered good except stated other wise)

Depaosits with Govarnment, public bodies™* 28,658 23,309
Capilal Advances 10,334 5,071
Others - 12
Total 38,992 28,392

* Inciudes amount deposited under protest




Zenotech Lahoratories Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019
{All amounts in thousands of Indian Rupees except share data and where otherwise stated)

Note 8: Inventories {at lower of cost and net realisable value)

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2018
Raw materials and Packing materials 5 842 8,089
Work-in-progress - 119
Total inventories 5,842 8,208

* Inventory write downs are accounted considering the nature of inventory, ageing, liquidation plan and net realisable value. The
changes in wrife downs are recognised as an expense in statement of Profit & Loss. Write downs of inventory during the current year

amounted fo Rs. 1,500/~ (Previcus year Rs. 1,9404).

7 (a). Trade receivables- Current

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Trade receivables considered good-Secured

Trade receivables considered geod-Unsecured* 23,581 39
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Trade receivables-credit impaired - 295
Total 23,581 334
Less : Provision for Trade Receivables credit impaired ™ - 295
Total trade receivables 23,581 39
* Related Parly receivables
** Provision for Trade Rec¢eivables eredit impaired
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Opening Balance 295 284
Add : Provision during the year 0 11
[Total 295 295
Less ! Provision adjusted against bad debis written off {295) 0
Closing Balance - 285
7{b). Cash and Bank Balances
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2618

Balances with banks

- in current accounds 1,937 4,021
Cash on hand 26 27
Other Bank Balances
Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 1,30,000 2,80,000
Cash and Cash equivalents (A} 1,31,963 2,84,048
Bank Balances other than above

- Margin Money deposits 1,660 7,560
Less: Margin Monay Deposit with Bank maturing after 12 months from the balance sheet date 1.000
clagsified as Non-Current (Nole 4(c)) ! i
Totat Bank Balances other than above (B) 560 7,560
Total cash and Bank Balances { A+B) 1,32,523 2,91,608 ]




7(¢). Qther Financial Current Assets

Particulars -

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Unsecured considered good

Interest acorued but not due 3,180 4,252
Total Other Financials Current Assets 3,180 4,252
8. Other Current Assets

As at As at

Particulars

March 34, 2018

March 31, 2018

Unsecurad, considered doubtful

Excess Remuneration paid, recoverable from an erstwhile managing director 7.980 7,880

Less: Provision for excess remuneration paid, recoverable {7,980) (7,980)
Unsecured, considered good

Balance with Statutory authorities 24,564 8,052

Advance for supply of goods and services 423 806

Prepaid expenses 586 449

Advance {o employees 24 40

Unbilled revenue (Coniract Assets)* 1,220 750

25,817 10,097

Total Qther Current Assets

* During the year ended March 34, 2019, Rs. 750 of unbilled revenue pertaining to coniracts as of Aprit 1, 2018 has been reclassified

to Trade receivables upon billing to customers on completion of milestones.




Zenotech Laboratories Limited

CIN: L27100AP1989PLCO10122

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

{All amounts in thousands of indian Rupees except share data and where otherwise stated)

Note 9: Equity
As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018
No. of shares Value No, of shares Value

Authorised
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 10,00,00,000 10,00,000 10,00,00,000 10,00,600

10,00,00,000 10,030,000 19,00,00,000 10,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 6,10,30,568 6,10,306 6,10,30,568 6,10,306
TOTAL 6,10,30,568 6,10,306 6,10,30,568 6,410,306

{a) Reconcitiation of the equity shares capital amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
No. of shares Value No. of shares Value
Equity shares
At the beginning of the year 6,10,30,568 8,10,308 3,44 27 500 3,44,275
issued during the year - - 2,66,03,068 2,66,031
Qutstanding at the end of the year 6,10,30,568 6,10,308 6,10,30,568 8,10,306

{b} Terms/rights attached to equity shares

a) The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in
the Company’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled o receive dividend as declared from time to time. On winding up of the
Company, the helders of equity shares will be entitled to recaive residual assels of the Company, remaining after distribution of ail
preferential ameimts in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Under the Zenotech Stock Option Scheme 2005, total of 50,000 and 75,000 shares had been issued to the then directors during the
year endad 31 March 2008 and 31 March 2008 respectively and 2,500 shares had been issued to employees during the year ended 31
March 2011, The rights were not exercised.

During the previous year, the Company made rights issue of 2,66,03,068 Equity Shares with a face value of Rs 10 each for cash at a
price of Rs 45 each including a share premium of Rs 35.00 per Equity Share aggregating to an amount upte Rs. 11,87,138/-
thousands.

{c) Shares heid by holding company

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018
No. of shares Value No. of shares Value
Equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each 3,561,28,078 35,12,80,780 3,51,28.078 35,12,80,780
( Held by Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited)
3,51,28,078 35,12,80,780 3,51,28,078 35,12,80,780

d. Detalls of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
% of holding in % of holding in
No. of Shares the class No. of Shares the class
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited* 3.51,28,078 57 56% 3,61,28,078 57.56%
Daiichi Sankyo Company, Limited 68,86,500 11.28% 68,886,500 11.28%
Padmasree Chigurupati 30,860,500 5.01% 30,60,500 5.01%

Note:

“Aggregate number of shares allotited as fully paid pursuant to contracts without payment being receivett in cash, bonus shares and
shares bought back for period of 5 years immedialely preceding balarice sheet date Nif (Previous year: NIL)"

“During the year ended March 31, 2019, the amount of per share dividend recognised as distribution to equity shareholders was NIL
(Pravious year. NIL}"



Zenotech Laboratories Limited

CIN: L27100AP1989PLCO10122

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2018

{All amounts in thousands of Indian Rupees except share data and where otherwise stated)

Note 10: Other Equity

As at As at
March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

Retained Earnings

SBecurities premium resesve 20,895,431 20,895,431

Retained Earnings {23,16,754) {22,85,561)
Total Reserves & Surplus (2,21,323) {1,90,130)
Securities Premium Reserve

Opening Balance 20,985,431 11,64,324
Rights issue - 9,31,107

Closing Balance 20,85,431 20,85,431

Retained Earnings

Qpening balance (22,85,561} (21,67,663)
Net toss for the period {31,270) (1,18,511)
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation, net of tax (OCH} 77 613
Closing Balance {23,16,754) {22,85,561)

GRAND TOTAL (2,21,323) {1,90,130)




Zenotech Laboratories Limited
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Note 11 {a): Provisions - Long Term

. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Non-Current Non-Current
Provision for Compensated Leave absences (Refer Note 11{¢)h) 1,598 1,321
Provision for Grafuity (Refer Note 11 (¢)) 1,774 1,448
Total 3,372 2,770
Note 11 (b}: Provisions - Short Term
. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Current Current
Provision for indirect taxation (Refer footnotes below) 1,71,116 1,67,359
Provision for Compensated Leave absencas (Refer Note 11{(c)) 581 302
Pravision for Gratuify (Refer Note 11(c}) 294 41
Total 1,71,991 1,67,702
i) Information about individual provisions and significant estimates.
Provision for indirect taxation
Provision for indirect taxation comprises of due towards Service Tax and Custom duty (EPCG)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Provision for Service Tax 90,215 86,458
Provision for Custems (EPCG Duty) 80,901 80,901
Total 1,711,116 1,67,359
ii) Movementis in provisions
Movements in each class of provisions during the financial year, are set below:
. Towards Towards
Particul
articutars Service Tax Customs duty
As at 1% April 2018 86,458 80,901
Charged/(credited) fo profit or ioss
-additional provisions recognised 7,269 -
Amounts used during the year (3,5123) -
lAs at 31% March 2019 90,215 80,901
iy Movements in provisions
Movements in each class of provisions during the financial year, are set below:
. Towards Towards
Particulars
. feuta Service Tax Customs duty
As at 1 April 2017 76,188 1,04,185
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss
-additional provisions recognised 7,270 8,650
Amounts used during the year - {29,934}
As at 31° Mareh 2018 86,458 80,901
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Note 11 (c):
a} Employea Benefits

Year ended

Particulars 31 March 2018

Year ended
31 March 2018

Amount recognised as expense in the statement of Profit and Less

Provident Fund Contribution 1,928

1,878

b} Leave Obligation

The actuarial valuation has been carried out using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Under this method, the Defined
Benefit Obligation is calcutated taking into account pattern of availment of leave whitst In service and qualifying
salary on the date of availment of leave. In respact of encashment of izave, the Defined Benefit Obligation is
caleulated taking into account all types of decrement and qualifying salary projected up to the assumed date of

encashment.

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2013
Current Liahility 581 302
Non-Current Ligbility 1,588 1,321
Total 2179 1,623

¢} Gratuity {Unfunded)

The Cempany has a defined benefit gratuity plan governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Every employee
who has completed five years or more of service is entitied te graluity on depariure at 15 days last drawn salary for

each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months

Changes in defined benefit obligation

Year ended Year ended
Particufars - 21
Projected benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 1,490 1,560
Ctirrent Service Cost 542 583
Interest Cost 113 108
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligation {77} (613)
Benefiis paid - (155)
Prejected benefit obligation at the end of the year 2,068 1,430
Break up of the Provision for Gratuity into Current & Nan- current

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 21 March 2018 31 March 2018
Current Liability 294 41
Non-Current Liability 1.774 1,449
Total 2,068 1,490




Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Service Cost 542 583
Interest Cost 113 106
Net Gratuity Costs 855 689
Summary of Actuarial Assumptions
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Discount rate 7.50% 7.70%
Salary escalation rate 7.00% 7.00%
Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 20138
Weighled average duration of defined benefit obligation (in years) 985 10.25
Expected benefit paymenis for the year ending
Not laier than 1 year 294 41
Later than 1 year and not lajer than 5 years 807 578
Later than 5 year and not later than 10 years 573 272
Above 10 years 3,748 2,985
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability recognised in other comprehensive income
Year ended Year ended

Particulars 31 March 201¢ 31 March 2018
Remeasurement for the perlod - Obligation {gain)/loss arising from
- change in demographic assurmptions (0} {18)
- change in financial assumptions 40 (139
- experignce variance {117) (458)
Amount recognised in OCl {77} {613)
Sensitivity analysis of significant actuarial assumptions
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate(-/+1%) 5.12% -4.74% 5.33%
Salary growth rate(-/+1%) -4.78% 5.12% -4.99%
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Note 12: Financial lizbilities

{a} Current borrowings

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Loans repayable on demand

Secured

Unsecured - amortised cost

Loan from holding Company (including interest accrued) 2,04,642 53,262
Tofal eurrent borrowings 2,04,642 53,262
Less: Interest accruad 2,242 53,262
Current borrowings (as per Balance Sheet) 2,02,400 -

Terms:

Laan from related party is availed with inferast at the rate of 9% per annum on the principal amount oufsfanding. The interest shall be paid at
the last day of every calendar quarter. However, any inferest remaining unpaid af the end of financial year shall be added to the principal
amount. Telal Loan or any poriion of the Loan amount shall be repayable at any time or from time to fime during the Loan Period {ie., 1
year caiculatsd from the Effective Dafe). During the previous year the Company had repaid the principal and interest due upto Sep*16 out of

proceeds from Rights Issue and interest from Oet'16 §ilf July'17 skill remains unpaid.

{b) Trade payables

. As at As at

Particulars March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Current
A). Trade paysbies-Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer footrotes below) 3,849 -
Total {A) 3,949 -
B}. Trade payables-Others
Relaled parties (Refer Note: 26(d) 1,438 2,059
Qthers 35,766 52,073
Total (B) 37,204 54,132
Total trade payables (A + B) 41,153 54,132

Note 1:

The ahove informalion regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the

basis of information available with the Company

Note 2: Disclosures required under section 22 of the Micro, Small and Mediurn Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Particulars

As at
Mareh 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

(i} Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year

{ii} Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year

{iii} the amount of interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Mediurn
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006}, 2long with the amount of the payment made to
the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

(iv) the amounit of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which has
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under the Micro, Smali and Medium Enlerprises Development Act, 2006

(v) the ameount of interest acerued and remaining unpald at the end of each accounting year

{vi) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, unti
such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purposs
of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006




_{c) Other financiat liabitities

As at

As at

Particulars March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Interest acorued and dug* 29,887 80,807
Payable to empioyees 575 3,936
Expenses payables 2,965 3,235
Total other current financial fiabilities 33,427 88,078

* Includes Rs 2,242 {Previous year Rs 53,262 Interest acerued and due perfaining to related pariies
The Company had repaid the principal loan amount of Rs.29,648 to Technology Development Board (TDB) during the year 2017-18.
However, Rs. 27,645 towards Inferest due is payabie fo TDB subject to reaiisation of 600,000 shares of Lafe.Dr. Jayaram Chigurupati held
by TDB as secuirity against the secured loan, as per the settiement agreement dated 22nd February, 2018 signed befween the Company

and TDB

Note 13: Other Current Liabilities

Particul As at As at
ariculars March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018

Security deposils - 1,672

Stalidory ligbiliies 4,607 5,098

Advance Rent Received SPIL - 257

Advance from related party (Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited) - 77,531

Total 4,507 84,555
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Note 14: Revenue from operations

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31,2018
Sale of products 7,602 7,793
Sale of services 1,22,689 1,03,649
Total* 1,30,291 1,11,442
*Refer note 20 for further delails
Note 15: Other income and other gains/{losses)

A) Other Income

Particul Year ended Year ended

aniculars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018

Interest income from bank deposits at amortised cost 12,482 17,308
Liabilities no longer required written back® 32,687 5,489
Lease Rental Income from Related Party 1,333 389
Miscellaneous income 585 505
Total (A) 47,097 23,61

* includes unclaimed balances of creditors and security deposits received from CSA's ageing more than 3 years

Note 16: Cost of materials consumed

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Raw materials and Packing materials at the beginning of the year 8,088 9,240
Add: Purchases 4,308 6,955
Less: Raw materials and Packing materials at the end of the year 5,842 8,089
Total cost of materials consumed 7,085 8,106

The cost of materials consumed includes Rs 1,500 (Previous year Rs 1,940) written off inventories relating fo biotech

division.

Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock in trade and finished goods.

. Year ended Year ended

P 1
articulars March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018

Opening Balance
Work-in progress 119 -
Total opening goods 119 -
Closing balance
Work-in progress - 118
Total closing balance - 119
Total changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock in trade and 119 (119)

finished goods.
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Note 17: Employee henefit Expenses

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Salaries, wages and bonus 44,471 45,434
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 2,739 2,173
Staff welfare expenses 2,504 3,059
Total 49,804 50,657
Note 18: Finance Cost

Year ended Year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Interest on Car Loan

Inferest on Term Loan - Biotech Consortium

414

interest on Term Loan - TDB -

Interest on Term Loan - SPIL* 1,177 24,046
QOthers - 34
Total 1,477 24,494

* Interest expense Rs 1,455 (PY-NIL) related fo Biotech Project fransferred to Capital work in progess
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Note 19: Other Expenses

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018

Power and fuel 35,821 42,428
Repairs and mainienance

- Buildings 1,321 1,896
- Plant and machingry 13,804 18,732
- Others 4,540 5,471
Conbract manpower expenses 10,753 8,861
Other manufaturing expenses

- Analyiical Charges 94 247
- Quality Contrel Cost 7.238 4,605
- Cansumables 8,616 10,918
Adverdiserment 209 503
Communication 195 282
Ratles and taxes 8,087 16,516
Insurance 1,678 2,048
Legal and professionai 3,937 7,652
Remidnigration to Auditors (Refer note() below) 1,284 789
Printing & Stafionery 543 991
Office and general maintsnance 314 285
Security charges 2524 2,454
Selling and distribution 51 54
Net gain/{loss) on foreign currency fransactions 1.244 124
Miscellanecus Balance Written off 769 583
1Erovision for doubtiul deblors - 11
Travelling and convevarce 2,350 3,550
Miscallanesus 1,223 782
Total 1,08,483 1,31,474
Note (i}

Details of payments to auditors

. Year ended Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 21, 2018
Payment o auditors

As Statufory auditor: 475 400
Certificates fees 230 50
Tax Audit fees 200 200
Other services 150 50
Out of pockel expenges 239 89
Total payment to auditors 1,284 789

Note 20: Customer contracts

Confract with customers:

Details of revenue from contracts with customers recognised by the Company, net of indirect taxes in its statement

of Profit and loss.

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Revenue from operations
Revenue from contract with customers

a) Sale of Oncology Products 7,602 7,793
b} Sale of Services- Contract Manufacturing) 1,22,689 1,03,648
c) lLease rental income 1,333 3588
Total [ncome 1,31,624 1,141,831

Disaggregate Revenue

The Company derives its revenue from sale of goods and services retated to manufacluring of pharmaceutical
products to its anly one customer i.e. Sun Pharmaceutical Indusiries Limited in India

Contract balances

Advance Collections is recognised when payment is received before the related performance obligation s satisfied.
This includes advances received from the customer towards sales/Services. Revenue is recogrised once the

performance obligation is met.

{As at 31st March

77,788 §
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Mote 21: Eamings Per Share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attribulable to equity halders of the parent by the welghied average number of Equity shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS amounts are ealculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity hiclders of the parent by the weighted average number of
Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares thal would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive poteniial Equity

shares into Equity shares.

a) Basic Earnings Per Share

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

From coniinuing operalions stirbutable fo the equity sharehwiders of the
Lompany

{0.51)

(2.24)

From Discontinued Cperations

Total basic earnings per share afiribuiable to the equity shareholders

{0.51)

{2.24)

b} Diluted Eamings Per Share

From continuing operations attributable to the equity shareholders of the
company

(0.5%)

(2.24)

From Diseontinued Operations

Total dilyted eamings per share atiributable to the equity sharehoiders

{0.51)

(2.24}

¢} Reconciliation of earnings used in calculating earnings per
share

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Bagic Earnings Per Share

Profit aftributable to the equity sharehoklers

Frem continuing operafions

(31,270

(1,18.510)

From discortinued operations

Profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the company used

(31.270)

(1.18.510)

in calculating basic earnings per share:

Diluted Earnings per share

Profit atiribulable 1o the equity shareholders

From confinuing aperations

E1.270)

{1,18,510)

From discontinued operalions

Prafit attributable to the equity shareholders of the company used
in calculating diluted earnings per share

(31,270)

(1,18.510)

d} Weighted average number of shares used as denominator

No. of Shares

No. of Shares

Waighted average nurriber of shares used as denominalor in cafculating
basic earnings per share

6,10,30.588

5,30,21.325

Adjusiments:

Weighted average number of shares and potential equity shares
used as denominator in calculating dituted earnings per share

6,10,30,565

5,30,21,325

Note 22{a): Fair Value Measurements

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the camying amourds and fair value of the companies’ financial instruments

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Amortised Amortised
FVTPL FVTOCH Cost FVTPL FVTOC! Cost
Financial Agsets
Trade Receivables 23,581 39
Cash and cash equivatents and Bank Balances 1,32 523 2,81 608
Other Financial Assels - Non Current 6,368 3,920
Oiher Financial Assets - Cuntent 3.180 4,252
Total Financial Assets 1,656,652 2,99,828
Financial Liabilities
Barrowings - 2,02,400 - -
Trade payables 41,153 54,132
Ciher Finangial fiabilties 3427 98,078
Total Finangial Liabilities 2,796,980 1,42,210

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivabies,

fargsiy due fo the short-tarm malurities of these instruments.

trade payables and other current liabilifes approximate their carrying amounts
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Nete 22(b): Fair Value Hierarchy

As no firancial instramant has been re-massured 2! fair value on reeurring basis as at each financial period end, fair valus hierarchy disciosure is not appicabie

Note 23; Financial Risk Management

AJCredit Risk
As the Company currently daais only with the parent entity, it is nof expusad to any cradit risk as on the reporing date

B} Liguidity Risk
Prudert liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable seourities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of

cormmitied credit facilitias to meel obligations when due and to ciese out markel positions.
Managerent monitors rofling forecasts of the campanies’ liguidity pesition somprising the cash and cash equivaients on the basis of sapecied cash flows.

i) Finaecial Arrangements NIL

if} Maturities of financial Habilites

The tablas below analyse the Company’s financiat labiiities into relevart maturily groupings based on their contractal malurities for ali non-derivative financial liabilities.
There are nio derivatives financial Fabiliies for the cumgany.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contraciual undiscounted cagh flows. Balances dus within 12 months equal their carrying baiances as the impaxt of discounting is not

Rs' 00}

g_;’g;’az‘;:”:' Maturities as at Duwe in 1st year Duein2ndyear | Due in 3rd to 5th year Total

Non derivatives

Borrpwings 2.02,400 - - 202400
Obhigations under finance lesse - - - -
Trade payables 41,163 - - 41,153
[Other Tnancial labiies 33,427 - - 33,427
Total pon-tenvatve Nabiines 2,76,980 z B 2,76,980
gfggiﬁ? WMaturities as at Due in 1st year Due in 2nd year Bute in 3rd to 5th year Total

Neon derivatives

Trade payables 54,132 - - 54,132
Other financial llabiillies 88,078 - - 88,078
[Total non-denvanve Nabiies 1,42,210 - - 1,42,210

C) Market Risk

Markel risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of afinanciat instrument may result from changes in the foreign currencies, exchange ratios, infersst
ralio, credit, fiquidity and other market changes. However, currency fisk and the inlerest risk are not significant {o the Company sirce, the Company has only Indian
rupea borrowings which is short term in nature.
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Note 24: Capital Management
The companies objectives when maraging capilal are to:

> Safeguard their ability to cantinue as a geing concern, so that they can continue to provide retums for shareholders and benedils for other stakeholders, and

> Mainlain an oplimat capital struclure lo reduce the cost of capitaf,
In order fo maintain or adjust the capilal structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, retum capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assads {o reduce debt,

Consistent with athers in the industry, the Cornpany monitors capital on the Basis of the folawing gearing ratio:
As at As at
March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2048

Particufars

Net debi (total borrowings net of cash and cash

equivalgnis) 72,678 NA
Total equity {as shown in the talance shaet,

including non-controlling interasish. 3,868,983 NA
Gearing Ratio {Net debt to eguity ratio) 19% %

Gearing Ratio Nii for FY 2017-18 as Cash and Cash Equivatents are more than borrowings to be paid,

Note 25: Operating Segmant Disclosure

As per Ind AS 108 segment information 1o be presented from managemeat's perspective, which means # is presented in the way used in infermal reparling. The basis far
ideniifying reportable segrnents is internal reporting as it is reported to and followed up on by the chief operaling decision maker (CODM). The Group has, in this context, identifed
the Chief Exsculive Officer of the company as the chief operating decision maker, The chief exedutive officer of the Company is responsible for aliecating resources and
agsessing performance of the operating segments and accordingly is idenlified as the chief operating decision maker. The Chief Executive Officer evaluates the operating
segments’ results on the basis of revende and groas profit as the performance indicator for all of the operating segments, and dees not review the tolal assats and liahilities of an
operating segment as it is not provided regularly to CODM for review.

Zenstech Laboratories Limited is engaged in single business activity of Pharmacauticals and the company dess not have mullipis operating segmenis. Other than revenus
analysis that is disclosed in Nate {20), no oparating results and other discrete financial information is avaitable for the tient of performance of the respective business
divisions and rescurces alfosation purpose.

Major Customer Dependericy

Entire porlion of the operating revenue eamed by the Company is from Single Customer i.e,, Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited in the current year. Ducing the previous year,
revenua gamed from Sun Pharmaseutical Indusisies Limited is 28% of the total revenise for the year.

Note 26: Interests in other entities

a} Subsidiaries

The Company's subsidiaries at 31 March 2019 are set out balow. Unless otharwise stated, they have share capilal cunsisting sofely of equily shares that are held directly by the
Cormpainy, and the propertion of ownership interests held equals the voling rights held by the company. The country of incorporation or registraion is afso their principal place of
busingss

Place of the Ownership interest held by the Prncipal
MName of the Entity businessicountry group Ownership interest held by rncipa
of incorporation non-tontroling interests activitles
31.03.201% 31.03.2018 31.03.2018 | 31.03.2018
% % % %
Zenolech Farmacautica Do Brasil Lida Brazit 66.39 66.39 33.61 3361 NA
Zenolech Laboratories Nigeria Limited Nigerie 99.9 93.9 0.1 0.1 NA
Zenviech ing UsA 100 180 - - NA

* During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company had decided 1o wind up its overseas subsidiaries namely Zenntech Pharmaceulica do Brazil Lida in its Board Mesting
daled 13th February, 2017 and Zenotech Laboratories Nigeria Limited vide its Circular Resolution daled 2nd March, 2017. The process of winding-up of Zenotech [aboratories
Nigeria Limited will be compieled in F.Y: 2019-20. There is no change in the status of Zenotech Pharmaceylica do Brazil Ltda as on March 31, 2019.

b} Interest in Associates and Joint Ventures- Nil
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Note 27: Related party transactions

{A) Holding Company:
< " Cwhership inlerssts
N Place of @
ame Type Ree ofineorparation 31.05.2019 31.09.2018
" e | T Iminediate aad ultimatef . .
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited parert entty India 57.56% 57.56%
{8} Fellow Subsidiary:
1Sun Pharmz Latorateries Limiled | Fetlow Subsidiany lindia NA| NA{
{C} Key managerial personnel:
Name Designation
fr, Dirsesh Kaponr Chief Executive Officer (upto Nov 2017}
Mr. Rajendra Singh Parihar Chief Exgcutive Officer (wef. Feb 2018)
Mr. Poly KV Chief Financial Officar
Mr. Abdul Gafoor Mohammad Cortpany Secretary & Complance Officer

{D} Transactions and batanzes with related parties:

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars Name of Entity March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018
i}. Operating transactions/balances with holding Companyigroup Company
Sales” 8,352 5,981
Conyersion Chargss” 1,22 689 1.03648
Inierest en shortlern borrowing Sun Pharrmaceutical 2,632 24,045
Trade advances iaken Industries Linvited - 86.525
Renlal and Hire Charges Ressived 1.333 388
Repayiment of Inlerest acorued from bomrowings 53,262 -
Purchase of Fixed Asspls 1,269 -
Other incoma racaived Sun Phan.’na - 50 -

= Laboratories Limited

Trade payable ( Balances as at) 1,438 -

(i) Loans and advances from/to related parties:

: As at As at
Particul

artiowiars March 31, 2018 Match 31, 2018
a). Loans from Sun Pharmaceaticat Indusiries Limited
Beginning of the year 53,262 7.26.019
Loans advancedf received 202,400 -
Loans repayment received/ made (53.262) {8,95,289)
Interest charged 2,368 21,641
Indeses] paid (127) -
End of the year 2,04,642 53,262
b). Trade advances from Sun Pharmacentical Industries Limited
Baginning of the year 77.532 1.28483
Advance taken - 88.625
Adjusted with sales/senviess (152,750} {3,25.544)
Advance repaid - {13,708
Reacgipls against bills 51,837 1777
End of the year (23,581) 77532
(E) Key manzgement personnel compansation:

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Shord« lerm employer bensfits 5874 253

Nates:

The managerial personnel are covered by the Company’s gratuity policy and Mediclaim insurance policy faken and are efigible for leave encashment along with other
empioyses of the Company. The proporfonate premium paid fowards these pelicies and provision made for leave encashment/ grafuity perfaining to the managedal persannal
has not baen inciuded in the aferementioned disclosures as these are nof determined on an individual basés.



Note 28:

_a) Update on the events and circumstances relating to on-going differences with Late Dr. Jayaram Chigurupati, the erstwhile Promoter and
Managing Director of the Company:

Past acquisition of stake in the Company by Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited and Daiichi Sankyo Company Limited (taken over by Sun
Pharmaceutical Industries Limited effective fram 24 March 2015 pursuant to a merger scheme herein after referred to as the “current
promoters”) there wese disagreements on various accounts between Late Dr. Jayaram Chigurupati and Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited/Dafichi
Sankyo Company Limited resulting in various legal cases being filed by both the parties before various forums. The Management was denied
aceess fo the factory and other premises of the Company due to which a legal case was filed before the Company Law Board {CLB}, Chennai,
for taking over the physical possession of the factory premises from Late Dr. Jayaram Chigurupati, the erstwhile Promoter and Managing Director
of the Company. Owing to the protracied legat case, the physical possession of the factory premises could be taken over on November 13, 2011
in the presence of CLB appointed Advocate Commissioner, in pursuance to an Order passed by the CLB. Subsequent to the gaining of the
pessession of the factory premises, further assesament by the Management revealed that, among others, certain books and records,
supplementary documents and statutory registers tiff the period 12 November 2011 were missing and which are stiil nat in the possession of the
Company. The Honourable Company Law Board vide order dated 8 October 2012 further directed the erstwhile Promoter and Managing Director
of the Company to return ail the documents and provide wiritten details of all missing documents/ assets/ stalutory records / equipment of the
Company. The Honourable High Court of Andhra Pradesh has also passed a similar order. The Company not yet received any of these
documents/ information.

The Management, therefore, based on the available Hmited records, statutory refurns filed, supplementary documents, invoices, external
corroboralive evidence and after considering the various non compliances under the Companies Act, 1956, listing agreement and Foreign
Exchange Management Act, etc. post 12 November 2011, reconstructed financial staternents for the years ended 31 March 2011 and 2012.
Management is also in the process of regularizing and compounding such non compliances with the various authorities concerned.

Since matters relating to several financial and non-financial imegutarities are sub-judice and various legal proceedings are on-going, any further
adjustments / disciosures to the financial statements, if required, would be made in the financial stalements of the Company as and when the
outcome of the above uncerfainties is known and the consequential adjustments / disclosures are identifiable/ determinable.

b} Investment in subsidiaries:

Upen obtaining control of the Company, the Management observed that no books of account and records were available regarding its overseas
subsidiaries. The management has not received any response from the erstwhile Managing Director on the queries raised regarding delails
pertaining 10 these subsidiaries and seeking documenis / certificates related to Forex transactions with these subsidiaries including certain loans
and investment made in ihe same. Provision has not been made for potential and financial consequences arising out of such on-going
evaluations, the outcome of which will depend on the nature and extent of non compliances which is currently not determinable. Meanwhile, the
Board has initiated the winding-up process for the defunct subsidiaries in Brazil and Nigeria.
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Note 29: Contingent assets and liabilities

(). Confingent Habilities

B articulars As at 31 March, | As at 31 March,

2019 2018

{a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt
Employee claims {owards Gratuity 1,860 -
Clairas by erstwhile co-managing director - 12,064
Total 1,860 12,064
(b) Guaraniees
Bank Guarantees issued on behalf of third parties - -
Total - -
{c) Other matters for which the Company is contingently liable
Ingeme Tax - 48,634
Customs & Central Excise 1,04,840 1,04,640
Servige Tax 78,912 23,958
Sales Tax / VAT 39
Wealth Tax 69
Others* - -
Total 1,83,660 1.78,272

*Legal cases filed byfagainst the Company

a). During the year ended 31 March 2011, Technology Development Board (TDB) had filed a claim petifion under Arbitration and Congiiation
Act, 18996 for recovery of dues payable by the Company as per loan agreement. The Arbitrator has issued an order with direction to the
Company and erstwhite Co-Maraging Director to pay individually or jointly the outstanding dues to TDB. During the earlier years, 600,000
equity shares of the Company held by erstwhite Co-Managing Director was transferred to TDB which were pledged as security.

Buring the previous year ended March 31, 2018, Company has repaid all the amount due to TDB ( exciuding Interest) based on the
settlement agreement by the DRC (Dispute Resolution Commiltee). The Interest fiability will depend upon the liabitity payable less the shares
sold in the open market by TDB (Pledged shares)

b). The Company has fited certain legal cases before the appropriate forum against the erstwhile promoter and managing director with regard
to loss of vehicles, missing records including inteflectual property, unauthorised use of the name & Logo of the Company and certain missing
DNA clones.

¢). Subsequent to Dafichi Sankyo Company Limited (DS) acquiring 53.92% stake in Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited {now Sun Pharmaceutical
Industries Limited) in October 2008, DS announcad an open offer to acquire 20% share of the Company at Rs. 113.62 per share. Aggrieved
by the pricing of the share, erstwhile promoter and one or two other shareholders filed a patition in the Hom'ble High Court of Madras. The
Company has been named as Respondent in the said case. An interim injunction in connection with the offer was given by the Hon'ble High
Court of Madras and subsequently it was quashed by the Hon'ble Supreme Court based on a petition filed by DS against the said injunction.
Meanwhile some of the sharehaiders (excluding Ranbaxy) including erstwhile promoter of the Company filed a petition with Securities
Appellate Tribunal (SAT) with respect to the pricing of the share of the Company against the order of the SEBI tuming down erstwhile
promaters’ complaint. SAT directed DS to price the open offer at Rs 160 per share, DS has filed an appeal against the SAT order in the
Supreme Court. The Supreme Court vide its order dated July 8, 2010 has ruled in favour of DS and allowed the open offer to be made at the
price of Rs 113 82 per share.

In June 2612, erstwhile promoter has filed a writ petition before Honourabie Andhra Pradesh High Court against Foreign Investment
Promotion Beard and Daiichi Sankye Company Limited chalfenging acquisition of 20% shares of the Comgpany by DS through an open offer.

d). In addition, the Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of businsss inciuding
Etigation before various tax autharities. The Company's Management does not reascnably sxpect that these tegal actions, when ultimately
concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on the Company's results of operations or firancial conditions. The
Company has accrued appropriate provision wherever required.

e). Other than those disclosed, the Company has not received any significant claims post 31 March 2011.

(iN.Contingent assats; Nil

Note 30: Asset.pledged as security

The carrying amount of asseis pladged as security in case of ivan taken from Technelagy Developrent Board (TDB)
As at As at
March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2018

Non-current

Property, plant & equipments (First charge) 4,31,086 4,44,309
Total non-currant assets pledged as security 4,31,086 4,44,308
Total assets pledged as security 4,31,086 4,44,309
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Note 31: Unhedged foreign currency exposure
a) There are no outstanding forward exchange contracts as at the year end.

b) Foreign currency exposures as at 31 March 2019 and as at 31 March 2018 that have not besn hedged by derivativa instruments or otherwise:

Particul As at As at
articulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2018
(IN USDh) Rs. {IN USD} Rs.
Loans and advances ic subsidiaries * 584223 26,086 584,223 26,086
Trade payables 1,066 74 45,524 2,054
{ther payables - - 3.07,544 20,004
* Provided fully and hence nof resiatad
Note 32: Capital Commitinents
Particulars As at As at
! 31 March 2018 31 March 2018
Estimated value of contracts remaining to be executed
on capital aceount and not provided for
Tangible Assals 74,770 38,597
Infangitite Asseats - -
74,770 35,507
Note 33:

During the year, there is an outstanding asmount of Rs. 80,901 (PY:Rs.80,801) provided towards expenses refating to unfulfiled expert obligation under the
Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme. The Company has accried these amounts based on the best estimates of the potential obligation based on the
information available with it currently.

Note 34:

In the absence of probability on avallability of taxable profit in near future, the Company has not recorded the cumulative deferred tax assets as on 31 March
2018 on unabsorbed depreciation amounting to Rs 495,121 (Previous yeer: Rs.447 439) arising on account of temporary diffsrences, as stipulated in IND AS
12- Income Taxes.

MNote 35!
Previous year's figures have been regrouped, wherever necessary, to confirm to current year's grouping.

Note 36:
The Standaione financial statements were approved by the board by directors on May 18, 2018,
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